
                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING  JUNE 3, 2015   Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY JUNE 3, 2015 7:00 PM 
61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CALIFORNIA 92252 

AGENDA 
 

 

 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
This is the opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters within the Board’s 
jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda.  Please limit comments to three (3) minutes or less.  
State law prohibits the Board of Directors from discussing or taking action on items not included on 
the agenda.  
 

Pgs. 1-9 
 
 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in nature and will 
be adopted in total by one action of the Board of Directors unless any Board Member or any 
individual or organization interested in one or more consent calendar items wishes to be heard. 

A. Approve Draft Minutes of the April 15, 2015 Regular Meeting of the Board of 
Directors. 

B. Approve Draft Minutes of the May 20, 2015 Regular Meeting of the Board of 
Directors. 
 

Pgs. 10-21 
 
 
 
 
Pg. 22 
 
 
Pgs.23-29 
 
 
Pgs. 30-38 

7. 
 
 
 

 
8. 
 
 

9. 
 
 

10. 

PUBLIC HEARING  TO CONSIDER THE WATER AVAILABILITY (STANDBY) CHARGES 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015/2016 
Recommend that the Board adopt Resolution 15-949, establishing water availability charges for 
15/16 and authorizing collection by San Bernardino County. 
 
JOINING EMERGENCY RESPONSE NETWORK OF THE INLAND EMPIRE (ERNIE) 
Recommend that the Board approve the District becoming a member of ERNIE 
 
ADOPTION OF WATER CONSERVATION ORDINANCE 15-9 
Recommend that the Board approve Ordinance 15-9 
 
ADDITIONAL OPTIONS FOR WATER CONSERVATION 
Recommend  that the Board receive an overview of the Urban Water Management Plan’s  Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan and creation of administrative penalties to encourage water 
conservation. 

PO Box 675 • 61750 Chollita Road • Joshua Tree CA  92252 
Phone (760) 366-8438 • Fax (760) 366-9528 • www.jbwd.com 

An Equal Opportunity Provider 

http://www.jbwd.com/


                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING  JUNE 3, 2015   Page 2 of 2 
 

  
11. 

 
REVIEW OF STANDING AND AD HOC COMMITTEES 
Recommend that the Board discuss existing committees and revise committee structure as 
appropriate. 

 
STANDING: 
A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: Vice President Luckman and Director Unger:   

Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant to report. 
B. FINANCE COMMITTEE: President Fuller and Director Johnson 
C. WATER RESOURCES & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE: Vice President Luckman and 

Director Johnson. 
 

 12. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
This is the opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters within the Board’s 
jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda.  Please limit comments to three (3) minutes or less.  
State law prohibits the Board of Directors from discussing or taking action on items not included on 
the agenda. 
 
 

 13. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT  
 
 

 14. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 
 

 15. FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES 
Mojave Water Agency – June 11 – Mike Reynolds 
ASBCSD June 15, 2015 

 
 16. INDIVIDUAL DIRECTOR REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 

 
 

 17. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
 
 

 18. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 

 19. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
 
INFORMATION 
 
The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item. 
Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Joshua Basin Water 
District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation. 
 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252 during normal business hours. 
 
This meeting is scheduled to be broadcast on Time Warner Cable Channel 10 on June 10 at 7:00 pm and June 17 at 7:00 pm.   
DVD recordings of Joshua Basin Water District Board meetings are available at the District office and at the Joshua Tree Library 



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING APRIL 15, 2015   Page 1 of 4 
 

 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

Minutes of the 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

 

April 15, 2015 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:00 PM 
 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Victoria Fuller 

Bob Johnson 

Mickey Luckman 

Mike Reynolds 

Rebecca Unger 
 

Present 

Present 

Present 

Present 

Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Curt Sauer, General Manager 

Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 

Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 

Randy Little, Water Production Supervisor 

Jim Corbin, Distribution Supervisor 

 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel, Redwine & Sherrill 

Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 

Mike Metts, Engineer, Dudek 
 

GUESTS 11 

 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  

MSC Luckman/Johnson 5/0 to approve the agenda for the April 15, 2015 meeting.  

  Fuller  Aye  

  Johnson Aye 

  Luckman Aye  

  Reynolds Aye  

  Unger   Aye  
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

         Frederick Klintworth of Joshua Tree: Sharing cookies with the group. 
 

6.     CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

MSC Luckman/Reynolds, 5/0 to approve Draft Minutes of the April 1, 2015 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

with the following changes requested by Director Reynolds:  

 

Item #9 in Public Comments:  add that the Board Chair denied the request of Richard Fountain representing Kay Keene 

the opportunity to question Mr. Metts, contracted Engineer. 

 

Item #16 in Director’s Comments: correct that the County of San Bernardino, not CalTrans was using water trucks to 

wash the streets. 

             Fuller  Aye  

             Johnson              Aye 

Page 1 of 38



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING APRIL 15, 2015   Page 2 of 4 
 

 

             Luckman Aye  

             Reynolds Aye 

             Unger   Aye 

 

7.   RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR SHIRLEY BOLHA UPON HER RETIREMENT 

Shirley Bolha was not present at the meeting as anticipated.  GM Curt Sauer and Assistant GM Susan Greer provided 

positive commentary, and Susan Greer read the resolution. 

MSC Reynolds/ Luckman, 5/0 to adopt Resolution 15-948. 

                       Fuller           Aye  

           Johnson           Aye 

           Luckman           Aye  

           Reynolds           Aye 

          Unger            Aye 
 

     

8.   PRESENTATION ON HYDRO PROFILING – CHROMIUM 6 

General Manager Curt Sauer provided some background regarding new regulations from the Public Health Department 

in 2014 with regards to Chromium 6. 

 

JBWD wells were tested in December 2014 and March 2015 for Chromium 6.  Four of five of the wells do not meet 

current regulations for Chromium 6 levels.  Senate Bill 385, recently introduced, provides for a variance from the 

hexavalent chromium standard for up to 5 years to districts not meeting the standard Chromium 6 levels if following a 

compliance plan, thus JBWD can be out of compliance while actively working towards a resolution. 

 

General Manager met with Assemblyman Chad Mayes on May 6
th
 in Sacramento, CA. GM Sauer has attended a 

public workshop, and is researching potential monies available through grants and loans. 

 

Dudek will be actively involved in program development and obtaining grant money. 

 

     Noah Heller, President of BESST Incorporated, gave the presentation. 

     Questions and discussion followed from the Board and from the Public.  

 

The Board received the information on the purpose of funding a hydro profiling project. 

  

9.   PRESENTATION ON ANION TESTING 

Miguel Arias-Paic of the Bureau of Reclamation gave the presentation.  

Findings from this study will be used to determine best treatments for treating chromium 6 with anion exchange. 

 

Questions regarding research on waste products (brine) followed the presentation.  

 

Directors expressed appreciation for the presentation and expressed support for the research proposal by the Bureau of 

Reclamation to test ion exchange treatments specific to JBWD water conditions, and the potential application to other 

small community water districts with chromium 6 concerns. 

     

10.   APPROVAL OF FUNDING FOR HYDRO PROFILING, AS PART OF THE DISTRICT’S CHROMIUM 6 

TREATMENT PLAN 

General Manager clarified that the testing will cost $28,659, and any additional monies would be utilized for 

laboratory testing and other miscellaneous costs. Funding is in the 2014/2015 budget. 

 

Completing this testing will put the JBWD in a better position to apply for grant monies. 

 

Page 2 of 38



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING APRIL 15, 2015   Page 3 of 4 
 

 

MSC Reynolds/ Luckman, 5/0  to direct General Manager to enter into an agreement with BESST Technologies to 

hydro profile one well and receive a report of findings, with the project not to exceed $31,000. 

                       Fuller           Aye  

           Johnson           Aye 

           Luckman           Aye  

           Reynolds           Aye 

          Unger            Aye 

 

11.   FINANCE REPORT 

Susan Greer gave the report. 

Director Reynolds commented that JBWD needs to address the shortfall of revenue due to the decrease of water use by 

looking at cutting our costs as opposed to raising our rates. 

 

The Board accepted the report for information only. 

 

12.   UPDATE ON CREDIT CARD OUTSOURCING 

The new system with Paymentus providing the service will be implemented as of May 1, 2015. 

The Board received update on credit card outsourcing as information only. 

  

13.   NOMINATION OF LUKE SABALA TO THE CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

General Manager noted Mr. Sabala’s geotechnological and hydrologic areas of expertise are especially pertinent and 

advantageous to the CAC and to the Board at this time, and that Mr. Sabala meets all criteria of membership. 

 

MSC Luckman/Johnson, 5/0 to appoint Luke Sabala to the Citizens Advisory Committee. 

                       Fuller           Aye  

           Johnson           Aye 

           Luckman           Aye  

           Reynolds           Aye 

          Unger            Aye 

 

14.   REVIEW OF STANDING AND AD HOC COMMITTEES 

  

    STANDING: 

A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE:  Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant, gave the report.  

Information about Paymentus and the Drought Ordinance are included with the water bill.  The JBWD 

booth at the Saturday Farmer’s Market is busy and Directors are encouraged visit; tortoises will be at the 

booth in May.  The Legal and Public Information Committee meeting scheduled for May 6
th
 has been 

cancelled. Ms. Radnich discussed a form that is available for reporting wasted water.  The goal is to give 

people and businesses the opportunity to correct problems with water wasting. 

B. FINANCE COMMITTEE: President Fuller and Director Johnson: Inactive meters will be a priority topic. 

C. WATER RESOURCES & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE:  Vice President Luckman and Director Johnson:  

The meeting is scheduled for April 22, 2015. 

 

15. PUBLIC COMMENT 

None. 

           

16. DISTRICT COUNSEL REPORT 

No report. Counselor Granito commented that a decision is anticipated by next Monday on Proposition 285, which 

has been in appellate court for a year and a half. 

Page 3 of 38



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING APRIL 15, 2015   Page 4 of 4 
 

 

 

17. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 

           The USGS nitrate study has been accepted for publication and will be out in May.  With regards to the     

Governor’s conservation order, there is a strategy planning meeting planned for 4-16-2015. 

 

18. FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES 

          CRWA 2015 Education and Exhibitor Expo: April 27-30 

           ACWA Conference: May 4-8 

           Mojave Water Agency Board Meeting: May 14 (4:30-5:30) 

 

       19. INDIVIDUAL DIRECTOR REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 

Directors that attended FEMA Training Conference last week found it informative. President Fuller attended a 

Drought Conference in Victorville and will report further in the future. 

 

      20. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS:  

Director Reynolds mentioned ideas for conserving water. 

 

       21.     FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

                  None.     

       

      22.     ADJOURNMENT 

 

      MSC Luckman/Reynolds 5/0 to adjourn the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of April 15, 2015 at 8:58 pm 

                 Fuller                   Aye  

                 Johnson      Aye 

                 Luckman      Aye  

                 Reynolds      Aye  

                 Unger                    Aye 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Respectfully submitted:  

 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Curt Sauer, General Manager and Board Secretary 

 

Page 4 of 38



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MAY 20, 2015   Page 1 of 5 
 

 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes of the 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

May 20, 2015 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:02 PM 

 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Victoria Fuller 
Bob Johnson 
Mickey Luckman 
Mike Reynolds 
Rebecca Unger 
 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Curt Sauer, General Manager 
Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 
Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel, Redwine & Sherrill 
Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
 

GUESTS 7 
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  

        MSC Luckman/Johnson 5/0 to approve the agenda for the May 20, 2015 meeting.  
  Fuller  Aye  
  Johnson Aye 
  Luckman Aye  
  Reynolds Aye  
  Unger   Aye  
 
5.    PUBLIC COMMENT: 

     None. 
 

6.   CONSENT CALENDAR 
Draft Minutes of the April 15, 2015 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors to be brought back for approval at     
the June 3, 2015 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors. 

 
7.   UPDATE ON CHROMIUM 6 – COMPLIANCE ORDER FROM DIVISION OF DRINKING WATER, STATE 

WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD 
General Manager Curt Sauer presented the report.  Chromium 6 levels at JBWD wells were presented.  One Tier 2 

notification required by the state will be issued to all customers in the June billing cycle.  
Questions asked and addressed.  Board accepted the report for information only. 

     
8.   BRIEFING ON STATE WATER RESOURCE CONTROL BOARD (SWRCB) ORDINANCE and BRIEFING ON 
        GOVERNOR’S BROWN’S EXECUTIVE ORDER 

                      SWRCB regulations were adopted on March 17th and amended on May 5th.  The May 5th emergency regulations 
apply. 

Page 5 of 38



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MAY 20, 2015   Page 2 of 5 
 

 

        General Manager Curt Sauer went over items in the SWRCB Resolution (No. 2015-32). 
        JBWD is in the 28% reduction tier, and reduction will be compared with 2013. 
 

GM explained some of the things that JBWD is doing and proposing to do in order to meet the goal of the 28% 
reduction.   

 
Discussion of commercial and institutional customers that will also need to conserve/reduce consumption ensued, as 

many of these fall within our District, and serve customers from outside our community. 
GM Sauer recognized and commended the California Highway Patrol for their commitment to conservation.  The 

CHP’s water audit results showed no leaks, and a reduction in water consumption by 22% since the first of the 
year. 

         
Residential: GM Sauer presented the tier system of water use and averages for 2014 use, and recommended the 

Board emphasize conservation using incentives and charges that encourage tier 3 and 4 to reduce water 
consumption. 

 
Board members commented on the challenge ahead resulting from the regulations. 
Johnson suggests looking at Best Practices from other districts.  
 
Public comment: 
Fred Klintworth, of Sunfair: Regarding urban classification (Over 3000 meter connections = Urban water supplier), 

asked the following questions: What classifications were available?  What if we were not classified as Urban? 
He also suggested the amounts of water be measured in gallons instead of units.  
Karen Tracy of Joshua tree, and of the Citizen Advisory Committee referred to the  4 tiers and gallons used part of 

the presentation as particularly useful, and suggested fees for tier 3 and 4 users – that it is within our scope to 
charge them for overages.  Tracy also suggested mulching trees, as there is pressure to reduce tree watering. 

Susan Greer stated that a Units to Gallons calculation is being developed by staff to appear on customers’ bills, and 
also stated that 70% of our residential customers only use 10 units or less per month. 

 
The Board received and discussed the briefing on these two items for information. 

 
9.   REVISION OF CONSERVATION ORDINANCE 
 

A Draft Amended Ordinance 14-8 was presented and provided.  GM Sauer showed what is suggested but not 
required, considered options available under the current and/or amended ordinance, and options for complying with 
new regulations. 
 
Incentives and charges  -   Previous regulations were oriented towards encouraging voluntary compliance with 
water conservation.  Proposed regulations encourage a more proactive approach towards enforcement, and 
incentives such as penalties or charges towards non-compliance with water conservation.  GM Sauer suggests 
JBWD get a new ordinance in place. 
 
Ordinance should not be limited to residential, and should include the entire community. Active outreach and 
education outside of the ordinance was encouraged.   
 
Board comments: 
Unger emphasized outreach education, slow water use in public facilities, and ask people to pay for a water audit. 
Reynolds suggested we trim the big numbers first – perhaps with a water audit or increase of rates for higher tiered 
users, in addition to looking for water loss internally. 
Luckman suggested compliance fines – to get people to conserve it will be through financial penalties. 
Fuller emphasized education, and that incentives are needed.  Perhaps the first water audit is free, and charged 

Page 6 of 38



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MAY 20, 2015   Page 3 of 5 
 

 

thereafter.  Penalties for watering sidewalks need to be included, as well as an appeal process.  Concentrate on the 
higher tiered water users.  

 
MSC Fuller/ Luckman, 5/0 to authorize staff and General Counsel to proceed with the preparation of an amended 
Conservation Ordinance that is consistent with the conceptual changes discussed.   
 
The Board authorized a Public Hearing to consider adoption of an amended ordinance.  
               Fuller           Aye  
           Johnson           Aye 
           Luckman           Aye  
           Reynolds           Aye 
          Unger            Aye 
     

10.   RECONSIDERATION OF THE ALTAMIRA WILL SERVE LETTER REQUEST 
        Curt Sauer presented information.  Conditional will serve letter for one year has been drafted.  The Altamira project 

may impact District’s ability to meet mandated regulations. 
 
        Discussion ensued on the impact of will serve letters while trying to achieve 28% water reduction compliance. 
 
        Ron Schwartz was at the meeting, and GM Sauer requested he be able to address the Board. 
 
        Ron Schwartz, one of principals involved in Altamira project, addressed the Board regarding the will serve letter. 

He stated that the letter is not a binding agreement, but simply the first step in a process.  He indicated that the 
letter contains contingencies and does not represent an agreement between Altamira and the District.   

 
        Gil Granito states: limiting production will limit availability of water.  Reluctant to say there is ample water 

available without complete analysis.  Working draft of the letter.   
               Luckman – strongly urge will serve be put on hold to meet goals and avoid fines 
               Reynolds – timing for request not optimal;  for giving the will serve, but  not during the state of emergency. 

         Johnson – 3 will serve letters,  concur timing is bad – at this junction ill-timed and postpone review to a later date 
until we have more information 

               Fuller – we need to intrerpret our ordinances, wait  timing  is awful 
        Unger – specific regarding treatment plant not confirmed….   Cannot look at will serve until March 1 to even look 

at offering a will serve letter.  Current regulations are in force until February 28, 2016. 
 

Ron Schwartz proposed we continue this rather than further discuss tonight, and that he would work and 
communicate with staff to see if we can come to a solution. 
 
Move to table number 10 with understanding that GM will work with project proponent. 
 
MSC Luckman/Reynolds, 4/1 to direct General Manager to work with project proponent, Ron Schwartz, Altamira 
representative. 
               Fuller           Aye  
           Johnson           Aye 
           Luckman           Aye  
           Reynolds           Aye 
          Unger            No 

 
11.   SUSPENSION OF CARPI CLAY LOBBYIST SERVICES 
        Carpi Clay was recognized by GM and Board members as a high quality company.   
        MSC Unger/Johnson, 5/0 to direct General Manager to cancel using Carpi Clay for lobbying services until needed. 

Page 7 of 38



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MAY 20, 2015   Page 4 of 5 
 

 

               Fuller           Aye  
           Johnson           Aye 
           Luckman           Aye  
           Reynolds           Aye 
          Unger            Aye 

 
12.   COMPLETION OF 2015 URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
        GM Curt Sauer presented the report. 

MSC Johnson/Luckman, 4/1 that the Board approve the use of Kennedy Jenks consulting to complete the required 
2015 Urban Water Management Plan for a cost not to exceed $47,000, with a contingency of no more than 10%. 
               Fuller           Aye  
           Johnson           Aye 
           Luckman           Aye  
           Reynolds           No 
          Unger            Aye 
 
Reynolds concerned that it has not gone out to bid. GM Sauer stated JBWD can go with sole source with someone 
previously used before that has provided good quality work. 

  
13.   THIRD QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORT 
        Fuller states Finance committee has reviewed the third quarter financial report and recommends that Board accepts 

the report. 
 

MSC Luckman/Unger, 5/0 that the Board receive and accept the third quarter financial report. 
               Fuller           Aye  
           Johnson           Aye 
           Luckman           Aye  
           Reynolds           Aye 
          Unger            Aye 
  

14.   REVIEW OF STANDING AND AD HOC COMMITTEES 
  
    STANDING: 

A.  LEGISLATIVE AND PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE:  Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach 
Consultant, gave the report.  Kathleen gave recognition for Steve Corbin’s award. 
On May 8th Radnich attended Jean Fuller’s office opening, and thanked her for the certificate of recognition 

Fuller gave to the JBWD for Water Education Day. 
The next Legislative and Public Information Committee Meeting will be held on June 3, 2015, 9:30 AM.   
Emphasis for discussion will be public outreach for the drought, and ideas to help our community. 

B.  FINANCE COMMITTEE: President Fuller and Director Johnson: Next Meeting will be on Tuesday 
May  26, 2015. Continuing forward with inactive meters. 

C. WATER RESOURCES & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE:  Vice President Luckman and Director Johnson:  
Organizational meeting.  The meeting is currently scheduled for Tuesday May 26, 2015, although this could 
change. 

 
15. PUBLIC COMMENT 

None. 
           

Page 8 of 38



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MAY 20, 2015   Page 5 of 5 
 

 

16. DISTRICT COUNSEL REPORT 
No report. Counselor Granito commented on the San Juan Capistrano Case.   

 
17. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
           None. 
 
18. FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES 
          Mojave Water Agency Technical Advisory Committee Meeting June 4th, 10:00AM in Apple Valley 
           Mojave Water Agency Board Meeting: May 28 (4:30-5:30) 
 

       19. INDIVIDUAL DIRECTOR REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 
None. 
 

      20. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS:  
Three directors attended ACWA meetings and would like to disseminate information in the community through 
Public Outreach.  Information will be posted.  
 
Unger talked about Alliance for water awareness conservation meeting -   – Mojave water drafted a letter  
Unger mentioned Bighorn Desert View Water Agency received a $5000 scholarship to be given to student pursuing 
water or engineering studies.   
 
Johnson attended the Morongo Basinwide Foundation breakfast; the guest speaker Jose Angel, gave JBWD credit to 
be forward leaning in our efforts to have a wastewater treatment plan in place. 
Luckman attended the Association of San Bernardino County special districts dinner. 

 
       21.     FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
                  Hi-Desert Medial Center/ Tenet Health   There is an upcoming vote on whether or not Tenet Health will take 

over the hospital.  We have a stake with the water treatment plant.  Final ballet at the end of June. 
       
      22.     ADJOURNMENT 
 
                MSC Luckman/Johnson 5/0 to adjourn the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of May 20, 2015 at 9:18 pm 
                 Fuller                   Aye  
                 Johnson      Aye 
                 Luckman      Aye  
                 Reynolds      Aye  
                 Unger                    Aye 
 
 
 Respectfully submitted:  

 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Curt Sauer, General Manager and Board Secretary 

 

Page 9 of 38



Page 10 of 38



Page 11 of 38



Page 12 of 38



Page 13 of 38



Page 14 of 38



Page 15 of 38



Page 16 of 38



Page 17 of 38



Page 18 of 38



Page 19 of 38



Page 20 of 38



Page 21 of 38



Page 22 of 38



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
MEETING AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors       June 3, 2015 
          
 
Report to: President and Members of the Board 
 
Prepared by: Curt Sauer      
 
 
TOPIC: Adoption of Water Conservation Ordinance 15-9 

 
RECOMMENDATION: That the Board approve Ordinance 15-9 
 
 
ANALYSIS: The purpose of the new ordinance is to bring the District into compliance with new 
regulations established by the State Water Resource Control Board in May, 2015. 
 
The proposed ordinance updates our conservation ordinance of August, 2014. As written, it will 
incorporate all current and the new prohibitions required by SWRCB.  
 
This ordinance contains the same or similar prohibitions that were in 14-8, adds new prohibitions as 
directed by SWRCB, and changes the existing penalty structure for violations of the ordinance. All 
changes and additions will be explained by staff. 
 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN ITEM:  
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23 of 38



1 

 

                                                   ORDINANCE NO. 15-9 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT (“DISTRICT”) SUPERSEDING 

 ORDINANCE 14-8 REQUIRING 
WATER USE EFFICIENCY MEASURES AND THE  

PREVENTION OF WATER WASTE PURSUANT TO  
CALIFORNIA WATER CODE SECTION 375 et seq. 

 
 

Recitals, Findings, and Determinations. 

A. On January 17, 2014, Governor Brown declared a drought state of emergency and 
on April 25, 2014, the Governor signed an Executive Order (“Executive Order”) 
calling on the State Water Resources Control Board (“State Water Board”) to 
adopt emergency regulations to ensure that urban water suppliers implement 
drought response plans to limit outdoor potable water irrigation and prohibit other 
wasteful water practices; and 
 

B. On July 15, 2014, the State Water Board adopted Emergency Regulations (“State 
Regulations”) effective July 29, 2014 that prohibit certain outdoor water uses and 
require urban water agencies to implement mandatory outdoor water use 
restrictions under their local water shortage contingency plans.  The State 
Regulations will remain in effect for a minimum of 270 days or nine months.  The 
State Regulations require urban water agencies to report monthly water 
production data, GPCD (Gallons per Capita per Day), conservation-related 
implementation measures and/or enforcement actions by the 15th of each month 
starting with August.  With regard to reporting GPCD, the State Water Board 
acknowledged that the GPCD reporting requirement will be delayed to October 
15 in order for the state to develop guidance on how the GPCD should be 
calculated.  Water production data for each preceding month will be compared to 
a similar month in 2013.  The State will develop an electronic reporting portal that 
will include applicable data fields.  Nothing in the State Regulations or in the 
enforcement provisions of the State Regulations, preclude a local agency from 
exercising its authority to adopt more stringent conservation measures; and 
 

C. On March 17, 2015 the State Water Board adopted Resolution No. 2015-0013 
which expanded the State Regulations (“Expanded Regulations”) to safeguard the 
state’s remaining water supplies as California enters a fourth consecutive dry 
year. The Expanded Regulations became effective on March 27, 2015 and remain 
in place for 270 days unless extended by the State Water Board. The regulations 
are set forth in Title 23, Sections 863-865 of the California Code of Regulations; 
and 

Page 24 of 38



2 

 

 
D. On April 1, 2015, Governor Brown issued Executive Order B-29-15, effective 

immediately and in addition to other requirements mandates a 25% statewide 
reduction in urban water use, and provides that the orders in the January 17, 2014 
and April 25, 2014 proclamations and Executive Orders B-26-14 and B-28-14 
also remain in full force except as modified by Executive Order B-29-15. The 
Governor directed the State Water Board to impose restrictions to achieve the 
statewide 25% reduction; and 

 
E. On April 7, 2015, the State Water Board proposed a mandatory Regulatory 

Framework that apportions water reductions according to consumption. The State 
Water Board revised the apportionment of water reductions on April 18 and April 
28 and the conservation savings for all urban water suppliers are now allocated 
across nine tiers of increasing levels of residential water use (R-GPCD) to reach 
the statewide 25% reduction mandate. Agencies in Tier 7, including JBWD, must 
reduce water use by 28%. On May 5, the State Water Board approved its 
Emergency Regulation Implementing the 25% Conservation Standard which 
includes a prohibition against certain irrigation practices and an order that all 
urban water suppliers reduce their total potable water production by a defined 
percentage which has been applied to each urban water supplier; and 

 
F. The water conservation measures and restrictions on water use identified by this 

Ordinance provide certainty to water users and enable the District to control water 
use and plan and implement water measures and restrictions in a fair and orderly 
manner for the benefit of the public.  This Ordinance is further intended to 
comply with the mandates of the State Water Board Regulations applicable to the 
District. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE JOSHUA BASIN 
WATER DISTRICT DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Conservation Water Use Restrictions and Measures. 

Except where necessary to address an immediate health and safety need or to comply with a term 
or condition in a permit issued by a state or federal agency, the following water use restrictions 
and conservation measures shall apply:  

a) The application of potable water to outdoor landscapes in a manner that causes 
runoff such that water flows onto adjacent property, non-irrigated areas, private 
and public walkways, roadways, parking lots, or structures is prohibited; 
 

b) The application of potable water to outdoor landscapes during and within 48 
hours after measure rainfall is prohibited; 

 

Page 25 of 38



3 

 

c) The irrigation with potable water of ornamental turf on public street medians is 
prohibited; 

 
d) The irrigation with potable water of landscapes outside of newly constructed 

homes and buildings in a manner inconsistent with regulation or other 
requirements established by the California Building Standards Commission and 
the Department of Housing and Community Development is prohibited;  
 

e) The use of a hose that dispenses potable water to wash a motor vehicle is 
prohibited, except where the hose is fitted with a shut-off nozzle or device 
attached to it that causes it to cease dispensing water immediately when not in 
use; 

 
f) The application of potable water to driveways and sidewalks is prohibited; 
 
g) The use of potable water in a fountain or other decorative water feature is  
 prohibited, except where the water is part of a recirculating system; 
 
h) Water shall not be permitted to leak from any water line, faucet or other facility  
 on any premises.   Any leak shall be repaired in a timely manner; 
 
i) All conventional (overhead) spray irrigation systems shall be scheduled to run 

between the hours of 8 pm and 9am.  
 
j) No use of potable water is permitted to irrigate, water or sprinkle grass, lawns, 

groundcover, shrubbery, crops, vegetation and trees between the hours of 9:00 
a.m. and 5 p.m. during the high use season which begins June 1 and terminates 
September 30 of each year. During this season, watering shall be permitted on any 
three days of the week, of the customer’s choice, but shall not exceed three (3) 
days of any week. 

 
k) Water for construction purposes, including but not limited to debrushing of vacant 

land, compaction of fills and pads, trench backfill and other construction uses,  
shall be used in an efficient manner; 

 
l) All new construction, including residential, commercial and industrial, shall be  
 equipped with low flow toilets and fixtures; 
 
m) All new model homes and commercial and industrial development, when  

landscaped, shall include low water use, drought tolerant or native plant material, 
and drip irrigation systems.  Irrigation systems shall include a smart irrigation 
controller or equivalent technology; 

 
n) Dedicated (separate) landscape water meters shall be installed for all irrigated  

Page 26 of 38



4 

 

 landscape areas in excess of 2500 square feet, except for single family residences. 
 
o) Water used for cooling systems must be recycled to the extent possible; 
 

     p) Evaporation resistant covers are required for all new swimming pools and hot tubs  
 and are encouraged on existing pools; 
 
q) To promote water conservation, operators of hotels and motels shall provide 

guests with the option of choosing not to have towels and linens laundered daily. 
The hotel or motel shall prominently display notice of this option in each 
guestroom using clear and easily understood language;  

 
r) The serving of drinking water other than upon request in eating or drinking 

establishments, including but not limited to restaurants, hotels, cafes, cafeterias, 
bars, or other public places where food or drink are served and/or purchased is 
prohibited;  

 
s) All water customers are encouraged to install flow reducers and faucet aerators. 
 

 
SECTION 2. Non-Compliance Charges and Penalties. 
 

a) Non-Compliance Charges: The following will apply to persons or entities failing to 
comply with any provision of this Ordinance: 

 
1. First Instance of Non-Compliance: The District will issue a written warning and 

send it along with an explanation of the violation. 
 
2. Second Instance of Non-Compliance: A second instance of non-compliance with 

this Ordinance is subject to a non-compliance charge of fifty dollars ($50.00) on 
the water bill. 

 
3. Third Instance of Non-Compliance: A third instance of non-compliance with this 

Ordinance is subject to a non-compliance charge of one hundred dollars 
($100.00) on the water bill. 

 
SECTION 3.  Appeals. 
 
 A. Any person or entity wishing to appeal a non-compliance charge, action or 

penalty shall do so in writing to the District’s General Manager. 
 
B. The District’s General Manager and/or his designee shall review and make a 

decision on the appeal. 
 

Page 27 of 38



5 

 

C. If the applicant disagrees with the decision, the applicant may appeal the decision 
to the District’s Board of Directors for consideration. 
 

SECTION 4. Purpose and Intent.  

It is the purpose and intent of this Ordinance to limit the use of water to beneficial purposes only 
and to prohibit and restrict the unnecessary and wasteful use of water. 

SECTION 5. Ordinance Controlling. 

  The provisions of this Ordinance shall prevail and control in the event of any inconsistency 
between this Ordinance and any other rule, regulation or code of this District, except as later 
amended by resolution or emergency rule. 

SECTION 6. Effective Date.  

 This Ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption. 

 

SECTION 7. Publication.  The District’s General Manager or his designee is hereby directed to 
publish this Ordinance in full within 10 days of August 20, 2014 pursuant to Section 376 of the 
Water code of the State of California. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28 of 38



6 

 

ADOPTED, SIGNED, AND APPROVED by the following vote this                   day                      
of                               , 2015. 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

      JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

 
      ______________________________________ 
      VICTORIA FULLER, President 
      Joshua Basin Water District and the 
      Board of Directors thereof 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
CURT SAUER, General Manager/Secretary 
Joshua Basin Water District and the 
Board of Directors thereof 

Page 29 of 38



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
MEETING AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors       June 3, 2015 
            
 
Report to: President and Members of the Board 
 
Prepared by: Curt Sauer      
 
 
TOPIC: Additional options for water conservation 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: That the Board receive an overview of the Urban Water Management Plan’s  
Water Shortage Contingency Plan and creation of administrative penalties to encourage water 
conservation. 
 
ANALYSIS: In an effort to reduce total monthly production, the District is actively pursuing a system 
wide audit, leak detection training by California Rural Water Association, well meter validation and 
other operational ideas. We have begun public outreach and coordination with our Institutional 
customers. 
 
Many in the public are taking the 28 percent reduction seriously, asking Customer Service for ideas, 
inquiring of Kathleen at the Farmers Market and discussing water saving ideas amongst themselves. 
 
I believe the community of Joshua Tree wants to significantly reduce their water consumption. 
However, public education and voluntary conservation may well not get us to our goal. There are at 
least two options available to the Board that should receive further review and discussion. These are 
utilizing the Water Shortage Contingency Plan and consideration of an administrative conservation 
penalty. 
 
This Item is intended to educate the Board and the Public about these topics, for consideration if total 
monthly production is not reduced to a level approaching 28 percent. 
 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN ITEM:  
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30 of 38



Page 31 of 38



Page 32 of 38



Page 33 of 38



Page 34 of 38



Page 35 of 38



Page 36 of 38



Page 37 of 38



Page 38 of 38


	9A Conservation Ordinance 060315.pdf
	JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT

	10A water conservation stage 2 3 and admin penalties.pdf
	JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT




